
EPHRATA BOROUGH COUNCIL
WORK SESSION MINUTES

MAY 2, 2016

The Ephrata Borough Council Work Session was called to order by President Susan Rowe at 
7:00 PM on May 2, 2016 in the Council Chambers of the Borough Office, 124 South State 

Street.

The meeting began with a moment of silence followed by the Pledge of Allegiance

In attendance in addition to the President were Vice President Thomas Reinhold, President Pro 
Tem Melvin Weiler, Council Members Timothy Barr, Dale Hertzog, Linda Martin, Ricky 
Ressler, Victor Richard and Mayor Ralph Mowen.

Also in attendance were Director of Operation Tom Natarian, Police Chief William Harvey, and 
Borough Solicitor James R. McManus, III, Esq.  Borough Manager D. Robert Thompson was 
absent.

Attending for the press was Gary Klinger of The Ephrata Review.  The following visitors were 
present:

Robert Brumbach, 75 East Franklin Street
Dennis Rowe, 214 East Main Street, Ephrata
Mitchell Martin, 955 Hopeland Road
Marvin Martin, 955 Hopeland Road, Lititz
Faith Samuel, 212 North Academy Drive, Ephrata
Tim Auker, 542 North State Street, Ephrata

Opportunity for Citizens to be Heard

Mr. Robert Brumbach, 75 East Franklin Street, said he has property out back, which is a junk 
yard because the people that are different neighbors to him make it a junk yard.

To start with one of the neighbors put all their stuff on his property and didn’t ask.  He mowed it 
and didn’t ask him.  So all Mr. Brumbach has is a junk yard.  Mr. Brumbach would like someone
to do something about this.  Mr. Brumbach lives at 75 East Franklin, #63 is his neighbor and the 
next one is a garage and in this garage.  It’s illegal to park a truck or car in there, but he parked 
one in there.  Aside of him he has another home which is supposed to be apartments and he has a
trash barrel out back.  Mr. Brumbach said it’s not big enough.  The Borough Manager said it 
passed.  About a year later he put two more barrels out there.  It fits right across from his 
neighbor who has a porch out back.  He has the apartment the next door to it and has retarded 
people living there.  It’s a shame really and they don’t have nothing.  Mr. Brumbach asked the 
Borough Manager to look into it, and he didn’t.  It still doesn’t have a bathroom or oven.

Mr. Brumbach said then you come up to - it’s supposed to be an apartment complex.  He has no 
opening on the outside; years ago he had a place in the back where you could get out but now the
guy put parking signs up.  He has to dump everything in my yard.  Can I bill him for it for 
cleaning up the stuff?

Mrs. Rowe said she will ask Mr. Natarian to get in touch with our Director of Codes 
Enforcement Nancy Harris.

Mr. Brumbach got a lawyer; the lawyer right across the street.  Mr. Brumbach said he lost his 
parking space.  He can’t park – in front of his place or in back of his place.  Mr. Brumbach asked
if he could get a no parking permit and was told no.  Then she explained that real quick to him, 
too quick, because I don’t trust her.  I don’t trust anybody.  She said she can’t give it to me.  It’s 
a private property on a deed by itself.  There’s no buildings on it, no nothing.  All they do is park
in my way that I can’t get into my yard.  Mr. Brumbach fussed about this.  Didn’t help him a bit.

She said to me that I have to build like a curbing at the edge of my property and go from there.  
Mr. Brumbach asked how do you make me go from the edge of my property.  It’s there, it’s been
there for years and I’m supposed to get a free one.  It’s supposed to be free – no parking signs, 
but she don’t put it in there.

Mr. Brumbach said there’s only one person on that street who has a parking space and that’s the 
guy right aside of him.  His house is up too far on Gross Street.



Ephrata Borough Council May 2, 2016
Work Session Minutes

2

Mrs. Rowe asked the Chief if it’s his personal property and there’s another vehicle parked on his 
personal property can he call the Police Department.  Chief Harvey said if it’s blocking egress he
would recommend calling.  If it’s illegally parking blocked in then it’s going to be just wait.  We 
then would then cite and towed.  Usually they try to call the owner to avoid the tow and negotiate
it out.

Mrs. Rowe said she will have Mr. Natarian relay this information to Mrs. Harris.  Please have 
her copy President Rowe on her response.  President Rowe said someone will be in touch with 
Mr. Brumbach.

Mr. Brumbach said are you sure of that.  Mrs. Rowe said she promises you.  Mr. Brumbach said 
733-68.

Mr. Brumbach said now that this guy did all this stuff what am I going to do?  Is it going to be a 
junk yard?  Mrs. Rowe said that’s a codes issue also.

Mr. Brumbach said there’s 65, 67 and 69 they are.  They’re the three properties on Fulton Street.

Mr. Brumbach said one more thing.  We have a tree right aside just across the street from me; 
it’s at least 100 feet high.  Mr. Brumbach thinks it ought to be cut down.  It’s on private property.

Mrs. Rowe said she doesn’t think there is much we can do about it.  Mr. Brumbach said it will 
tear everything down.  I look at that damn tree often.  He’s lived there 58 years.  Mr. Brumbach 
thinks the tree ought to be cut down.

Mr. Brumbach said he’ll be back.

There were no other comments or remarks from attendees.

Discussion of Committee Actions

The Committee Chairs reviewed and discussed their work session items.

Budget and Finance Committee

Mr. Hertzog said the one and only item the committee will be coming forth to council next week 
will be the proposed appointment of Mrs. Linda Martin as liaison from Borough Council to DEI 
replacing Mrs. Rowe who is going to be exiting her position as liaison.

Development Activities Committee

Mrs. Martin said there are four items to be brought forth.  The first one is the stomwater 
management plan for the Ephrata Area School District; they are renovating the track at the 
Middle School Area, 957 Hammon Avenue.  They are proposing stormwater management 
improvements associated with the track and field facility.  The Committee will recommend that 
Council approve the stormwater management plan with the inclusion of HRG’s comments dated 
4-12-2016.  This will appear on the consent agenda.

The Committee also reviewed an Improvement Agreement for the proposed stormwater 
improvements at that same location, 957 Hammon Avenue.  The amount of the improvements 
will be $79,777.72.  The applicant has requested a waiver of posting financial security.  The 
Committee will recommend that Council approve that waiver based on the written commitment 
from the Ephrata Area School District saying they pledge to address any financial shortfalls that 
may occur during the project.  The Committee will recommend that Council authorize the 
Council President and Secretary to execute the improvement agreement with the developer.  This
will also appear on the May consent agenda.

Mrs. Martin said the third item is an Operation and Maintenance Agreement for the proposed 
stormwater track associated with the plan for the Ephrata Area School District Track 
Renovations.  The Committee recommends that Council authorize the Council President and 
Secretary to execute an operation and maintenance agreement with Ephrata Area School District.
This will also appear on the May consent agenda.



Ephrata Borough Council May 2, 2016
Work Session Minutes

3

Mrs. Martin said the last item is the Committee reviewed a request from staff to waive Section 
275-301.H.3 of the stormwater management ordinance to allow a 1,500 square foot stone parking
area to be considered pervious on the Fulton Maintenance Garage project.  Staff is proposing to 
place the impound stalls in 2B stone.  The area will only be subject to light traffic.  The soil 
beneath the stoned area was tested by a professional geologist and found to drain properly.  The
Committee that Council waive this Section 275-301.H.3 for the 1,500 square foot of stone area at
the Fulton Maintenance Garage and to allow the 2B rounded stone to be considered pervious.

Mr. Hertzog asked how deep will the 2B stone be.  Mr. Hertzog said it makes sense and he 
understands but doesn’t think there was any discussion as to the depth of the stone for it to be 
considered pervious.

Public Safety Committee

Mr. Weiler said the Public Safety Committee will bring a recommendation to Council 
authorizing an amendment to the four year leasing agreement with Santander that was approved 
at the 2-1-16 Council meeting changing the amount from $521,569.76.  The amended amount 
will be $532,369.76 which is for the purchase of the extended MAXCARE warranty for the eight
Dodge Chargers.

Mr. Weiler said the second item is addressing the same issue.  Council will authorize an 
amendment to the purchase of 8 Dodge Chargers and 4 Ford Interceptors for the fleet through the
COSTARS purchasing program from Hondru Ford of Manheim that was approved 2-1-16 
meeting.  The amended amount is not to exceed $532,369.76.

1. Mr. Weiler said the third item is Borough Council per Section 5.2 of the Civil Service Rules, 
notify the Civil Service Commission of a vacancy in the Police Department and request a 
certified list of (3) names from the list of eligible applicants for the purpose of filling the 
vacancy.

Highway Committee

Mr. Richard reviewed the Highway Committee items.

The Committee reviewed the results of Bid #16-4 the 2016 Street & Alley Improvements.  The 
Committee will recommend Council award the bid to low bid to New Enterprise Stone & Lime 
Co., Inc. from Ephrata, PA.  There were four bids, and they were the low bid in the total amount 
of $419,634.17.  This will be part of the consent agenda.

Mr. Richard said there are several components of this as far as the full depth reclamation and 
other items that only show up once we start digging.  The $419,000 dollars does not include 
those things, and the budget estimate for the project was $640,000.  Mr. Richard said he spoke to
Mr. Burkholder and best guess from him is we are hoping to come under budget but we won’t 
know until we start the project.  The extra amounts will be for the digging, the reclamation, the 
stabilization, the base repairs, and the subgrade and some subject price adjustments for the 
paving price adjustments and provisions for the escalator clause and other unforeseen conditions.
The budget estimate was $640,000, and we are hoping to come under that.  Right now the lowest
bid was at $419,634.17 from New Enterprise.

Mr. Richard said the Committee reviewed the request from the Ephrata Farmers Day 
Association, Inc. from a letter dated April 8 of this year to conduct activities for the 98th annual Ephrata 
Fair from September 20th through September 24th, 2016.

Mr. Richard said it is really a carbon copy as far as the letter accompanying it asking for the same streets 
and usage of various things throughout the Borough for the week event.  The parade route currently 
planned is the same as last years which is somewhat altered from previous years.  We have been told by 
PenDOT there is a possibility that the bridge over SR272 Cocalico Creek near Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 1 may be done June 1.

Mr. Richard said we did want to let the Farmers Day Association know that should it be done prior to the 
event in September that if they wish to consider putting the fair parade back to the original route they 
certainly would have the time to consider putting it back in place.  The Committee will recommend that 
Council conditionally approve the request subject to Borough’s receipt of satisfactory certificate of 
insurance and Borough’s receipt of a PennDOT issued special events permit.  We will assist them in 



Ephrata Borough Council May 2, 2016
Work Session Minutes

4

completing the permit, but the Farmers Day Association Inc. as the applicant.  This item will be on the 
consent agenda.

Mr. Richard said the Committee reviewed a curb and sidewalk evaluation of existing conditions 
at 227 Church Avenue due to a recent citizen complaint by Mr. Wayne Allen of 40 Rock Road, 
Ephrata.  The Committee reviewed the conditions and authorized staff to notify the property 
owner requiring replacement of approximately four (4) linear feet of concrete curb and 
replacement of approximately thirty (30) square feet of concrete sidewalk within 60 calendar 
days from date of notification in accordance with the current Borough of Ephrata Concrete Curb 
and Sidewalk Construction Specifications.

Mr. Richard said there are pictures of this in the packet; it looks like there was a tree there at one 
given time.  It’s no longer there.  Staff will be sending a letter out if this is approved by Borough 
Council giving the property owner 60 calendar days upon receipt of letter.

Mr. Richard said lastly the Committee reviewed a request from the Pioneer Fire Company per 
their letter dated April 19th to close South State Street from West Franklin Street to Fulton Street 
on Tuesday, June 28 from 5:45 PM to 9:15 PM to conduct demonstrations, activities relative to 
their annual Open House.  The Committee will recommend that Council approve the request as 
part of the consent agenda.

Mrs. Martin asked if we have any idea of how much is costs to replace 30 square feet of concrete
sidewalk at 227 Church Avenue.  Mr. Richard believes it is twenty some dollars a foot but 
wouldn’t guarantee that figure.  Mayor Mowen said looking at the picture it is probably going to 
cost him $1,500.

Mr. Richard said he thinks the policy gives him a minimum of 30 days.  Mr. Richard said for 
ADA and some other things it really is quite a mess.  Mayor Mowen said in looking at the 
picture he will probably have to do some curb work.  Mr. Richard said Mrs. Rowe noted that 
there is a black down spout running the water on top of the ground.  We are going to ask that 
they require that the flow be put under the curb.

Mr. Barr said in the packet it says $650 for the 30 square feet of concrete plus 4 linear feet of 
curb.  It just lists the concrete slab cost.

Municipal Enterprises Committee

Mr. Reinhold said the first item is Director of Operations Mr. Natarian reviewed a presentation 
prepared by GDS Associates with results of indicative pricing for various blocks of electric 
power.  The results are pretty favorable.  It is a good opportunity to layer the new blocks of this 
power into the Borough’s portfolio consistent with the Power Supply Master Plan.  According to 
Staff’s recommendation to maximize the purchasing opportunity pursuing up to four separate 
blocks of power which are outlined in Resolution 2016-14.  The Committee will recommend that
Council adopt that resolution.  That indicative pricing goes out to 2025.

Mr. Reinhold said the next item is Mr. Natarian discussed the substation security system project 
that is included presently in the 2016 budget and program of services with an estimated cost of 
$200,000 to be funded from the electric fund balance.  Due to limited availability with our staff 
resources that project’s not going to be pursued this year.  In lieu of the security system staff is 
recommending those funds be utilized for the substation automation project.  That project was 
approved by Council last September 14.  That estimated cost was $120,000 with funding from 
the electric fund balance; however, that project was not completed in the last calendar year 2015,
and it also was not rolled into the 2016 budget and program of services.  Because of that the 
Committee is going to recommend that Council authorize the use of funds from the electric fund 
balance originally allocated for the substation security system to pay for the substation 
automation project previously approved.

Mr. Natarian said the Substation Automation project involves installing a SCADA control 
system that’s a computer operated system that will give us information about the workings of the
substation and a series of relays that you can remotely be able to open and close to isolate service
areas.

Mr. Natarian said the Substation Security system is a project that included a series of cameras 



Ephrata Borough Council May 2, 2016
Work Session Minutes

5

and lights around the substation.  We can’t get to it this year.

Community Services Committee

Mr. Barr said the Committee reviewed the recommendations from the Ad Hoc Cultural Arts 
Grant committee regarding the 2016 awards.  The Committee will recommend that Borough 
Council make the awards as listed.

Mr. Barr said the Committee reviewed a request from DEI asking the Borough of Ephrata to 
sponsor a planter to be placed in the Downtown business district.  Each year 20 planters are 
placed sponsored by a business or individual to make the Downtown more aesthetic.  The 
sponsorship recently increased to $275; however, the DEI is offering sponsorship to the Borough
at the previous rate of $250.  The Committee will recommend that Council approve the request.

Opportunity for Citizens to be Heard

There were no comments from attendees.

Mr. Ressler said Special Projects are working on a project they put on delay for 60 days to give 
an opportunity for the organizations involved to take care of some things.

Recommendations

Highway Committee

It was moved by Mr. Richard, seconded by Mr. Ressler, and unanimously passed by roll call vote
 that Borough Council award Bid No. 16-3 Spring Garden Street Storm Water Improvements to 
apparent low bidder:  Bottom Line Contracting, Inc. of Lititz, PA in the total bid amount of 
$119,000.36.

Mr. Richard said there were a considerable amount of bids on this project – there were ten in all. 
The project was budgeted for $200,000 and Bottom Line Contracting is new to the Borough.  
Mr. Burkholder did the due diligence and everything came back favorable on Bottom Line 
Contracting.

This contract will also have some unforeseens, and we won’t be quite sure until we actually get 
in the ground, but there will be additional trench excavation and aggregate backfill needed.    
Once we get in the ground there are some variables.  Mr. Richard said this should have been on 
last month’s agenda but was missed inadvertently.

Discussion/Announcements

Mr. Barr said a couple of weeks ago and now every week since Mr. Barr has taken his father to a
community dinner at one of the local churches.  These are nice gatherings for people who may 
not be able to afford or for others who can but want to get out and meet the people.  Mr. Barr 
asked that organizer that particular evening if the head person of one of these dinners would like 
to do our community moment.

Mr. Reinhold said he has a complaint from his perspective if the borough can help with this at 
all.  The cometary at the War Memorial Field.  Mr. Reinhold believes Cloister Associates 
maintains it or the State maintains it.  It looks horrible.  All the money the School District has put
into the field and its right there at the intersection.  It’s just overgrown with dandelion.  Mr. 
Reinhold isn’t sure how often they move; it’s not very often at all.  If there’s any way we can 
reach out to the State.

Mr. Richard said it is maintained by the State and there has been some vandalism up there.  With
the Ephrata Cloister and the tax crunch they only have limited people there down to a couple 
days of volunteerism from the Associates.  They are strapped for help.  Mr. Richard said the state
owns the property but Cloister Associates are a volunteer organization which has stepped up to 
help the state for their shortfall of coverage but it’s owned by the State of Pennsylvania.

Mr. Richard said the state is responsible for mowing.



Ephrata Borough Council May 2, 2016
Work Session Minutes

6

Chief Harvey said tombstones of that age depending on the composition if it gets a fissure or 
whatever through years of weathering and aging, freezing they will break.  They are very fragile.

Mayor Mowen said you all should have received an email from the Chief regarding the 
upcoming symposium that the County Mayor’s Association is sponsoring with Lancaster 
General Health.  It’s called Heroin – Community Conversation.  Here in the north it’s a 
collaboration of the Mayor of Akron, Denver, and Mayor Mowen.  It will be held on May 26 at 
7:00 PM at the High School.  LGH is involved.  WellSpan is involved.  They will have one or 
two recovering addicts speaking and several of the health agencies like Caron there.  This 
epidemic has exceeded what is going on when Mayor Mowen issued the Heroin crisis thing 15 
years ago.  It’s far worse than that right now.  It’s national, and we need to dig in and address it.  
Hopefully we’ll have a good turnout.  Mayor Mowen said the District Attorney will be there as 
well as a doctor from LGH and WellSpan will be speaking.  We need to support and get the 
education out there to try to reverse this trend.

Mayor Mowen said about a month ago over one weekend we had two deaths related to drug 
overdose – one in the Township and one in the Borough.  It’s as bad as it was if not worse.

Mayor Mowen said it’s a national crisis.  Mayor Mowen said there is a move in the State Senate 
to have a reporting process when a doctor prescribes an opiate.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was duly adjourned at 8:30 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

_________________________
D. Robert Thompson, Secretary`


